
 
DESERT WATER AGENCY     BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OCTOBER 6, 2015                                                                  REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
                                                          

REGULAR MEETING   8:00 A.M.   OPERATIONS CENTER - 1200 GENE AUTRY TRAIL SOUTH – PALM SPRINGS – CALIFORNIA 
About Desert Water Agency: 
Desert Water Agency operates independently of any other local government.  Its autonomous elected board members are directly accountable to the people they serve. The Agency is one of the desert’s 
two State Water Contractors and provides water and resource management, including recycling, for a 325-square-mile area of Western Riverside County, encompassing parts of Cathedral City, Desert 
Hot Springs, outlying Riverside County and Palm Springs. 

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – A.   September 15, 2015 EWING 

                                        B.   September 23, 2015 (Special) EWING                               
                                 

3. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT  LUKER 
 

4. COMMITTEE REPORTS – A. Executive – September 29, 2015        EWING  
 
5. PUBLIC INPUT 

Members of the public may comment on any item not listed on the agenda, but within the jurisdiction of the Agency.  In addition, members of 
the public may speak on any item listed on the agenda as that item comes up for consideration.  Speakers are requested to keep their 
comments to no more than three (3) minutes.  As provided in the Brown Act, the Board is prohibited from acting on items not listed on the 
agenda. 
 

6. ITEMS FOR ACTION - None 
 

7. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION 
A. State Water Contractors Meeting of September 17, 2015 RIDDELL 
B. Alternative Conservation Plans and Examples LUKER 
C. Director’s Report on ACWA Region 9 Event                                                        EWING, STUART 
D. Directors Report on ACWA Board Workshop and Meeting EWING 

   
8. PUBLIC INFORMATION  
 A. Media Information 
 B. PI Activities 

 
9. DIRECTORS COMMENTS AND REQUESTS 

 
10. CLOSED SESSION 
 A.  CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians vs. Coachella Valley Water District, et al 
 
 B. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians vs. County of Riverside, et al 
   
11. RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION – REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 

 
12. ADJOURN 
 

 

Upon request, this agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  Any person with a disability who requires a 
modification or accommodation in order to participate in a meeting is asked to contact Desert Water Agency’s Executive Secretary, at (760) 323-4971, at least 48 working hours prior to the meeting to enable the Agency to make 
reasonable arrangements.  Copies of records provided to Board members which relate to any agenda item to be discussed in open session may be obtained from the Agency at the address indicated on the agenda. 



8578 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 09/15/15 

 

2A                                                                   
   MINUTES   

OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
September 15, 2015 

 
DWA Board: Craig A. Ewing, President ) 
 James Cioffi, Vice President   )         
 Joseph K. Stuart, Secretary-Treasurer ) 
 Patricia G. Oygar, Director ) 
 Richard Oberhaus, Director ) 
 
DWA Staff: David K. Luker, General Manager ) 
 Mark S. Krause, Asst. General Manager ) 
 Martin S. Krieger, Finance Director ) 
 Sylvia Baca, Asst. Secretary to the Board ) 
 Ashley Hudgens, Public Information Officer ) 
 Steve Johnson, Operations Engineer ) 
   
Consultant: Michael T. Riddell, Best Best & Krieger ) 
       

Attendance 

17254.  President Ewing opened the meeting at 8:00 a.m. and asked 
everyone to join Secretary-Treasurer Stuart in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
17255.  President Ewing called for approval of the September 1, 2015 
Regular Board meeting minutes.  
 
  Director Oygar moved for approval. After a second by Vice 
President Cioffi, the minutes were approved as written.  
  
17256.  President Ewing called upon General Manager Luker to 
provide an update on Agency operations. 
 
  Mr. Luker gave a brief overview of the 2014-15 Replacement 
Pipeline project (Avenida Caballeros) and the 1040 Zone reservoir. He 
noted several Agency equipment damages. 
 
  Concluding his report, Mr. Luker announced the United Way 
Tram Road Challenge will be held on Saturday, October 24. As in years 
past, the Agency will be participating. 
     
17257.  President Ewing noted the minutes for the September 9, 2015 
Executive Committee were provided in the Board’s packet. 

Pledge of Allegiance 
 
 
 
Approval of 09/01/15 
Regular Board Mtg. 
Minutes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
General Manager’s 
Report 
 
 
 
Damaged Equipment 
 
 
 
 
United Way Tram  Road 
Challenge 
 
 
 
 
Committee Reports –  
Executive 09/09//15 
 
 



8579 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 09/15/15 

 
17258.  President Ewing opened the meeting for public input; there 
was no one from the public wishing to speak. 
 
17259.  President Ewing called upon Secretary-Treasurer Stuart to 
provide an overview of the financial activities for July and August 2015. 
   
  Secretary-Treasurer Stuart reported $2,140,856 was received 
in Water Sales Revenues. $184,788 was received in Reclamation Sales 
Revenues. Included in the Miscellaneous receipts, $12,935 from SCE (Solar 
Field II energy rebate for June 2015), and $6,400 from CVWD (Lamar 
billboard display cost sharing). $3,105,294 was paid out in Accounts 
Payable (including $755,407 for PERS 2015/16 unfunded liability). There 
were 22,155 active services as of July 31, 2015. Water consumption was 
<30.1%> less than July 31, 2013.  
 
  General Fund receipts included $733,782 in Property Tax 
Revenues and $879,678 in Groundwater Replenishment Assessments. 
$3,049,033 was paid out in State Water Project Charges and $14,488 to 
CVWD (2014/15 IRWMP costs for RMC Consulting Services). 
 
  Regarding the Wastewater Fund, Secretary-Treasurer Stuart 
reported $6,820 was received in Sewer Contract Payments. There were a 
total of 84 contracts with 30 delinquent (36%). $82,674 was paid out in 
Accounts Payable. 
 
  Reporting on the August Operating Fund statistics, Secretary-
Treasurer Stuart stated that $1,985,085 was received in Water Sales 
Revenues. $96,286 was received in Reclamation Sales Revenues. Included 
in the Miscellaneous Receipts total is $302,098 from CPV for DWA’s 
Conservation program (smart controllers) and $12,493 from SCE (Solar 
Field II energy rebate (July 2015). Paid out $1,444,579 in Accounts 
Payable. Year-to-date Water Sales are 6% over budget, Year-to-date 
Reclamation Sales are 10% under budget, Year-to-date Total Revenues are 
8% over budget, and Year-to-date Total Expenses are 4% under budget. 
There were 22,167 active services as of August 31, 2015. 
 
  General Fund receipts included $170,208 in Property Tax 
Revenues and $196,023 in Groundwater Replenishment Assessments from 
private pumpers. $1,521,380 was paid out in State Water Project Charges. 
 
  Regarding the Wastewater Fund, $82,147 was received in 
Wastewater Revenue for July 2015. $50,363 was received in Sewer 
Capacity Charges. There were a total of 81 sewer contracts, with 3 paid in 
full (34 total delinquent, 42%). $64,864 was paid out in Accounts Payable. 
 
 
 
 

Public Input 
 
 
 
Secretary-Treasurer’s 
Report (July) 
 
 
 
Operating Fund 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
General Fund 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Wastewater Fund 
 
 
 
 
 
 
August – Operating 
Fund 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
General Fund 
 
 
 
 
 
Wastewater Fund 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8580 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 09/15/15 

 
17260.  President Ewing called upon General Manager Luker to report 
on the August Water Production Comparison. 
 
  Mr. Luker reported that the Agency and its customers 
achieved a 29 percent reduction during August 2015 compared to August 
2013; the baseline used by the State Water Resources Control Board to 
measure statewide conservation achievements. 
 
  There was discussion on new legislation and the Agency’s 
administrative penalties. 
 
17261.  President Ewing stated he will be attending the following 
ACWA events: 1) Region 9 Event on September 18 at Inland Empire 
Utilities Agency, and 2) Workshop/Meeting on September 24-25 at 
Cucamonga Valley Water District. 
 
17262.  At 8:17 a.m., President Ewing convened into Closed Session 
for the purpose of (A) Existing Litigation, pursuant to Government Code 
Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians vs. 
Coachella Valley Water District, et al,; (B) Existing Litigation, pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla 
Indians vs. County of Riverside, et al, and (C) Public Employee 
Performance Evaluation, pursuant to Government Code Section 54957, 
General Manager. 
 
17263.  At 9:14 a.m., President Ewing reconvened the meeting into 
open session and announced there was no reportable action on Items 10A 
and 10B. Regarding Item 10C, President Ewing announced that the Board 
completed a public employee performance evaluation of General Manager 
Luker. 
 
  President Ewing made a motion to approve an adjustment to 
the General Manager’s salary equivalent to the Cost of Living Adjustment 
that was recently given to DWA employees to become effective October 1, 
2015. After a second by Director Oygar, the motion carried unanimously. 
 
17264.  In the absence of any further business, President Ewing 
adjourned the meeting at 9:15 a.m. 
    

                                         ____________________________________ 
                                         Craig A. Ewing, President                                 

 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Joseph K. Stuart, Secretary-Treasurer 

Discussion Items: 
August 2015 Water 
Production Comparison 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Directors’ 
Comments/Requests 
 
 
 
 
 
Closed Session: 
A. Existing Litigation – 
ACBCI vs. CVWD, et al 
B. Existing Litigation – 
ACBCI vs. Riverside 
County, et al 
C. Public Employee 
Performance Evaluation 
– General Manager 
 
 
 
 
Reconvene 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
General Manager 
Performance Evaluation 
 
 
 
 
 
Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



8580 

Desert Water Agency Special Board Meeting Minutes 09/23/15 

 

2B                                                                   
   MINUTES   

OF THE SPECIAL MEETING 
OF THE 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
September 23, 2015 

 
DWA Board: Craig A. Ewing, President ) 
 James Cioffi, Vice President   )         
 Joseph K. Stuart, Secretary-Treasurer ) 
 Richard Oberhaus, Director ) 
 
Absent: Patricia G. Oygar, Director ) 
 
DWA Staff: David K. Luker, General Manager ) 
 Mark S. Krause, Asst. General Manager ) 
 Martin S. Krieger, Finance Director ) 
 Sylvia Baca, Asst. Secretary to the Board ) 
 Steve Johnson, Operations Engineer ) 
   
Consultant: Michael T. Riddell, Best Best & Krieger ) 
       

Attendance 

17265.  President Ewing opened the meeting at 8:00 a.m. and asked 
everyone to join him in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
17266.  President Ewing opened the meeting for public input; there 
was no one from the public wishing to speak. 
 
17267.  President Ewing called upon Operations Engineer Johnson to 
present staff’s request for the award of contract for constructing 2015/2016 
replacement pipelines. 
 
  Mr. Johnson stated on September 22, 2015, the Agency 
received seven bids for the work of constructing 2015/2016 replacement 
pipelines (Indian Canyon, Stevens, Wawona). Borden Excavating submitted 
the lowest responsive bid, approximately 22% lower than the second low 
bidder; Weka, Inc. Borden is considered a capable contractor with a current 
Class A contractor’s license. The engineer’s estimate is $950,000 and the 
budget amount is $1.2 million including engineering, construction, 
inspection and overhead costs.  
 
  Continuing his report, Mr. Johnson noted that to 
accommodate the City’s street rehabilitation and slurry project schedule, 
Agency staff has coordinated with the City’s engineering department on a 

Pledge of Allegiance 
 
 
 
Public Input 
 
 
 
 
Action Item: 
Award Contract for 
Constructing 2015/2016 
Replacement Pipelines  
(Indian Canyon, Stevens, 
Wawona) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8581 

Desert Water Agency Special Board Meeting Minutes 09/23/15 

 
rehabilitation schedule and expedited pipeline installation schedule to allow 
the Agency to replace the pipelines prior to the street rehabilitation work. 
Staff recommends award of the contract for subject work to Borden 
Excavating in the amount of $730,269.00. Based on the bidding documents 
and the schedule arranged with the City, the project should begin the 2nd 
week of October, with completion by December 2015. 
 
  Director Oberhaus moved to approve staff’s recommendation 
to award the contract to Borden Excavating in the amount of $730,269.00. 
After a second by Secretary-Treasurer Stuart, the motion carried 
unanimously (Director Oygar absent). 
   
17268.  In the absence of any further business, President Ewing 
adjourned the meeting at 8:10 a.m. 
    

                                         ____________________________________ 
                                         Craig A. Ewing, President                                 

 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Joseph K. Stuart, Secretary-Treasurer 

Action Item: 
(Cont.) 
Award Contract-2015/16 
Replacement Pipelines 
(Indian Canyon, Stevens, 
Wawona) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



3 

 
 
 

Page 1 of 10 
 

 
GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

OCTOBER 6, 2015 
  
 

 

On September 22 at approximately 9:00 p.m., staff responded to a call at 300 South Palm 
Canyon Dr. (Palm Springs Art Museum). The fire service had a considerable blow out which 
ended up flooding the lower level of the museum. The fire department also responded to the call 
and helped pump the water out. The fire service was off at the street. The museum provided fire 
watch. The water ran for approximately thirty to forty five minutes. Our Construction crew made 
the repairs and the fire service is back in service.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 2 of 10 
 

 
 

On September 23 at approximately 11:00 a.m., staff responded to a stolen two inch backflow at 
950 Williams Rd. Staff received written permission to replace the backflow and the customer was 
going to make a police report. The backflow was replaced and is now back in service and the 
water loss was metered.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 3 of 10 
 

 
 

On September 24 at 7:30 a.m., staff noticed a large amount of trash outside the west side door of 
the Agency. There was an empty FedEx box along with empty brown lunch bags and medical 
marijuana boxes. Palm Springs Police were called and they took an incident report, they 
determined it to be someone dumpster diving. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 4 of 10 
 

 
 

On September 25 at approximately 2:30 p.m. the Assistant Construction Superintendent 
responded to a stolen fire hydrant (#2434) on the South side of Sunny Dunes Rd. East of San 
Luis Rey. The thieves must have turned the valve off, there was no sign of any water loss. A 
police report was made and the hydrant is back in service.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



Page 5 of 10 
 

 

On September 28 at approximately 11:30 a.m. while Construction staff was taking the bac-t on 
the previous stolen fire hydrant, it was noticed that the hydrant across the street was missing too 
(Sunny Dunes Rd., east of San Luis Rey). This appears to have occurred over the weekend. 
Construction has since flushed and chlorinated this hydrant (#1994).  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 6 of 10 
 

 

On September 29 at approximately 9:40 a.m. after staff was flushing fire hydrant number #1994, 
they found another fire hydrant that was stolen on Sunny Dunes Rd. East of Gene Autry Trail (this 
is fire hydrant number #2439). A police report was made.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 7 of 10 
 

 

On Wednesday Sept. 30, DWA, CVWD, and MWD staff visited Lake Perris to tour the Dam 
remediation work currently in progress. 
 
In 2005, DWR identified potential seismic safety risks in a section of the foundation of the dam 
and lowered the lake level to ensure maximum public safety until dam repairs are made.  The 
reservoir has since been further drawn down to meet drinking water demands during the 
prolonged drought. 
 

 
 
Construction to strengthen the Dam foundation began in 2014 and is expected to continue for 
three years.  Pulice Construction, Inc. was awarded a 75 million dollar contract to perform the 
work. 
 
The Dam Remediation design concept is to remove and replace loose soils, improve the deeper 
foundation soils by Cement Deep Soil Mixing (CDSM) and construct a stability berm on the 
downstream side of the Dam and include drainage features. 
 
Staff’s observations on the tour were of the work being done in the remediation zone which 
included completed clearing and grubbing, dewatering, removal and replacement of loose shallow 
soils, set up of two CDSM’s, rock processing and stockpiling for filter and drain system, and 
partial construction of a New Haul Road near outlet structure. 
 

Remediation Zone 



Page 8 of 10 
 

 

 

New Haul Road 

Inlet/Outlet Structure 



Page 9 of 10 
 

 
Staff was informed that there have been delays getting the necessary power from SCE for the 
rock processing and dewatering activities.  The power lines have now been installed.  There is 
also a significant delay in the construction of the New Haul Road.  The bid by the sub-contractor 
was significantly below the second low bidder.  The road was supposed to be completed in May 
of this year and is currently only 20% completed.  This road is necessary to haul the all materials 
for the filter system and remediation berm for the project.  Protecting the existing inlet/outlet 
structure during the blasting for the road has been a major concern and now a change in the 
geology of the rock discovered during blasting has created yet another delay.  The delay is not yet 
affected the overall schedule of the project.  Work continues on the relocation of monitoring wells, 
filtration drains, and the preparation for the construction of the CDSM stability cells.  The rock 
Crushing sub-contractor is also having difficulty producing filter material to the specification 
required by the contract and is planning on re-tooling in order to achieve what is required.  They 
have been making claims that the problem is due to the native material.  To date there have been 
approximately $400,000 in approved change orders (0.53% of the project total cost). 
 
Overall, it is DWR’s opinion that the project problems are not significant enough to delay the 
project and they believe that the significant claims brought by the contactor so far are not valid 
and DWR has the facts to prove it. 
 

 
 
 
 

Cement Batch Plant 

Multi-Auger Rig 

Installing CDSM Cells 



Page 10 of 10 
 

 
 

On October 1 at approximately 3:00 a.m. stand-by was notified of a fire hydrant alarm on fire 
hydrant #2431. This hydrant is located on the South side of the intersection of Indian Springs Rd. 
and Rio Blanco Rd. When staff arrived, the fire hydrant was spraying out of the flange. The 
thieves attempted to unbolt the fire hydrant. Staff noticed that the valve in the street was nearly 
off; they replaced the bolts and gasket and turned the hydrant back on. A police report was made. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



4-A 
Minutes 

Executive Committee Meeting 
September 29, 2015 

 
 

Directors Present: Craig Ewing, Jim Cioffi      
Staff Present: Dave Luker, Martin Krieger  
    
 
1. Discussion Items 

 

A. Review Agenda for October 6, 2015 Regular Board Meeting 
The proposed agenda for the October 6, 2015 Regular Board meeting was 
reviewed. 

    

 2. Other – None. 
 
  
   
            
 3. Adjourn 

 



7-A 

01358.00002\19893247.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

September 17, 2015 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: GENERAL MANAGER AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF DESERT WATER AGENCY 

FROM: BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP 

RE: SEPTEMBER 16, 2015 MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
THE STATE WATER PROJECT CONTRACTORS AUTHORITY AND 
SEPTEMBER 17, 2015 MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
THE STATE WATER CONTRACTORS, INC. 

The September 16, 2015 meeting of the Board of Directors of the State Water 

Project Contractors Authority was conducted at the Senator Hotel in downtown Sacramento.  

The September 17, 2015 meeting of the Board of Directors of the State Water Contractors, Inc., 

was conducted at the Tsakopoulos Library Galleria in downtown Sacramento. 

1. SWPCA Board Meeting. 

The primary topic of discussion at the meeting of the Board of Directors of the 

State Water Project Contractors Authority was the proposed agreement between SWPCA and the 

State and Federal Contractors Water Agency to fund proposals for habitat restoration projects in 

the Delta and in Suisun Marsh.  The 2008 biological opinion for the Delta Smelt included 

requirements to create or restore 8,000 acres of tidal habitat.  The opinion was issued to the 

Department of Water Resources for the operation of the State Water Project, although the 

Central Valley Project acknowledges that it should be responsible for some portion of the 

mitigation requirement as well, since the CVP also diverts water from the Delta.  DWR and the 

Bureau of Reclamation have been discussing a memorandum of agreement that would allocate 

costs between them, although that MOA has not been executed yet.  In the meantime, DWR has 

been collecting money from the Contractors on their statements of charges to cover the cost of 

addressing that mitigation requirement, and in fact has spent a lot of money already without very 

much to show for it.  The State and Federal Contractors Water Agency has been discussing with 

DWR an approach in which DWR would solicit proposals from outside entities to perform 

habitat restoration projects, under contract with DWR, in exchange for which DWR would 



 

 
- 2 - 

01358.00002\19893247.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

receive mitigation credits to be applied to the habitat restoration requirements set forth in the 

biological opinion.  David Okita has been hired by DWR to oversee that project, and he has been 

meeting with the Department of General Services to help develop a RFP process that will satisfy 

State contracting guidelines.  Okita was present at the meeting and reported that the discussions 

with the Department of General Services are underway and will continue.  Meanwhile, the 

General Manager of the State and Federal Contractors Water Agency, Byron Buck, has 

approached the State Water Project Contractors Authority with a request that the members of 

SWPCA advance the “upfront” money to allow the SFCWA to develop proposals in response to 

DWR’s anticipated requests for proposals to perform habitat restoration projects.  Byron Buck 

projects that during the initial year, a budget of $750,000 will be required to develop a proposal, 

submit it to DWR, and then get started on the work, assuming that the proposal submitted to 

DWR is accepted by DWR.  SFCWA would be competing with other private enterprises that 

might also wish to submit proposals.  However, Byron Buck believes that the SFCWA would 

have a competitive advantage in submitting its proposal, since it would be willing to perform the 

work at cost, without seeking to profit from the work.  The “upfront” money would be utilized to 

get the process going, DWR would make progress payments as work is performed, and the 

payments received would be used to fund the next project, and then the next project after that, 

until the entire 8,000 acre habitat restoration requirement has been satisfied. 

The General Managers and legal counsel for the SFCWA and SWPCA have been 

working on a draft agreement between SFCWA and SWPCA to provide the funding necessary to 

get the program going, until such time as progress payments are received in amounts sufficient to 

keep the program going, through conclusion.  A draft of the proposed funding agreement was 

circulated at the Board meeting, with a caution that the draft was still subject to review and 

revision both by SFCWA and by SWPCA members themselves.  The draft assumes that some 

SWPCA members will elect to participate, and will contribute funds to get the program going.  

Amounts contributed by those that elect to participate would be in proportion to their Table A 

Amounts.  It is anticipated that Metropolitan Water District will be a participant and therefore 

will provide most of the “upfront” funds, and that a number of other SWPCA members will also 

elect to participate.  The ideal scenario would be if all members participate, but it is anticipated 

that some members may not be in a position to do so.  The amount contributed by each member 

would be credited to that member’s “contribution account” in anticipation that all of the money 



 

 
- 3 - 

01358.00002\19893247.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

advanced will be returned to that member upon conclusion of the program.  DWR will bill all 

State Water Contractors (both those participating in the program and those that do not) according 

to their Table A Amounts as necessary to make progress payments, in accordance with the 

executed State Water Contracts.  For those members that do elect to participate, the current draft 

agreement provides that the amount reflected in each participating member’s contribution 

account will be increased by some percentage each year in order to compensate that participating 

member for the use of its money.  Although the draft agreement provides for participation by 

Central Valley Project Contractors, as well as State Water Project Contractors, at this time it is 

anticipated that only SWP Contractors in fact will participate. 

In addition to the draft agreement between SFCWA and SWPCA to fund the 

program, the participating members of SWPCA would each execute a Specific Project 

Agreement among themselves.  Thus, the participating members would be bound by the Specific 

Project Agreement that they executed, while those members that elect not to participate would 

not be bound by the Specific Project Agreement.  Specific Project Agreements are contemplated 

by the Joint Powers Agreement that created the SWPCA. 

The Contractors believe that the projects will be completed more efficiently, and 

far less expensively, in this manner than if DWR itself were to “staff up” to perform these 

projects.  The Contractors believe that ultimately it will cost them less to perform the work in 

this manner, rather than relying upon DWR to do so in house. 

2. SWC Board Action Items. 

At the State Water Contractors Board meeting, the Board acted on a couple of 

items.  First, the Board directed the Interim General Manager to send a letter to DWR in support 

of a proposal to purchase flows in the San Joaquin River from Oakville Irrigation District and 

from San Joaquin Irrigation District at a price of $500 per acre-foot.  The flows will produce a 

total quantity somewhere between 22,000 and 24,000 acre-feet.  The cost would be split evenly 

between DWR and the San Luis and Delta Mendota Water Authority.  The flows may produce 

water that would be available for allocation to Contractors next year, or may be used instead to 

satisfy flow requirements in the Delta. 



 

 
- 4 - 

01358.00002\19893247.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

The SWC Board also took action to approve a proposal by DWR to convert 

historic State Water Project land records, currently in paper form, to a GIS system instead.  

DWR developed a six page business case which demonstrated that the estimated cost ($6.5 

million) would be recovered in the form of reduced expenses within 8.5 years.  The savings will 

result from a reduction or reassignment of DWR staff currently used to manage the paper record 

system, which would be replaced by the GIS system.  DWR hopes to fund the expenditure from 

other funds currently on hand and in the existing budget. 

3. Water Supply Report. 

As of the date of the meeting, total storage in Lake Oroville was at 1.05 million 

acre-feet.  DWR was releasing water from Oroville to the Feather River at the rate of 1,200 cubic 

feet per second.  Combined diversions from the Delta for both the State Water Project and the 

Central Valley Project were at the rate of 2,300 cubic feet per second.  Combined storage in the 

San Luis Reservoir was at 420,000 acre-feet, with 350,000 acre-feet belonging to the State Water 

Project and 70,000 acre-feet belonging to the Central Valley Project.  Projected storage at Lake 

Oroville for the end of October was at 900,000 acre-feet.  There was discussion of the cost of 

removing temporary barriers that have been installed in the Delta for the benefit of both the State 

Water Project and the Central Valley Project.  The Bureau of Reclamation has indicated that it is 

not prepared to fund its share of the cost of removing the barriers.  The Board took action 

directing the Interim General Manager to send a letter to DWR objecting to the Bureau of 

Reclamation not paying its fair share of the cost of removing the barriers that have also benefited 

the Central Valley Project. 

4. Energy Report. 

There was a very interesting report regarding DWR’s energy policy after the year 

2020.  Graphs were displayed which demonstrate that solar energy generation peaks dramatically 

during the day, when the sun is out, but drops off dramatically during the early morning and 

evening hours.  The generation of electricity from wind energy is erratic and unpredictable.  

Thus, there is an excess of “green” energy in the middle of the day, but the demand for green 

energy exceeds generation capability during the early morning hours and evening hours, when 

solar energy is not being produced.  Thus, hydropower generation from the State Water Project is 



 

 
- 5 - 

01358.00002\19893247.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

extremely valuable during those peak demand times of the day, early in the morning and later in 

the evening.  Furthermore, market prices change by the hour, and therefore the charges for green 

energy can be greatly increased during the early morning hours and late evening hours, when 

demands exceed supply.  The excess green energy produced during the middle of the day creates 

“negative pricing” because green energy generation exceeds the demand.  Thus, consumers can 

actually be paid for operating their facilities during the middle of the day.  DWR is conducting a 

“flexible resources study” which will evaluate the following:  (a) operation of pumping facilities 

during the daylight hours as much as possible, so as to take advantage of negative pricing; (b) 

generation of hydropower as much as possible during the early morning and evening peak 

demand periods, when the power can be sold at a premium; and (c) ways to operate the State 

Water Project so as to address the above considerations, as much as possible, while still 

delivering the water needed for the Project’s primary purpose of delivering water to the 

Contractors.  It was noted that Cal-ISO is not adding certainty to the market design.  DWR will 

also examine the use of variable speed pumps that can be used to slow down pumping during the 

morning hours and evening hours, when energy is expensive, and to ramp up the pumping during 

mid-day hours when favorable pricing exists. 

5. General Manager’s Report. 

Interim General Manager Stephanie Morris reported that the proposed permit for 

“California Water Fix” (the tunnels) is about to be submitted to the fish agencies.  She also 

reported that the Independent Science Board for the Delta Stewardship Council has provided 

extremely negative comments on the draft EIR/EIS, asserting that the draft does not present a 

proposal that can even be considered.  DWR has already submitted its response to those 

comments.  DWR Director Cowin wants to move forward quickly with the creation of the 

Design and Construction Enterprise to proceed with construction of the tunnels.  He hopes to 

have the Design and Construction Enterprise in place by the end of October.  Stephanie also 

reported that there is a lot of activity on proposed State Water Contract amendments, both to 

extend the Contract and for participation in the Delta improvements.  DWR is also preparing 

environmental assessments for those Contract amendments. 

 



 

 
- 6 - 

01358.00002\19893247.1  

BEST  BEST  &  KRIEGER 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

6. Business Process Update. 

A report was provided regarding progress made this year in addressing business 

process objectives.  A power point presentation was used, and a copy is attached to this memo.  

The topics included a report on the “California Water Fix” Contract amendment, the Contract 

extension amendment, the Sixth Amendment to the Tolling and Waiver Agreement, and DWR’s 

Capital Cost Reconciliation Project.  Following that presentation, the Board convened in closed 

session to discuss Delta water rights litigation matters. 

MICHAEL T. RIDDELL 



Ending At Midnight - September 30, 2015

Graph Updated 10/01/2015 03:15 PM

LEGEND

Capacity
(TAF)

% of Capacity |% of Historical
Average

Historical

Average

Trinity Lake
22% | 33%

Shasta Reservoir
35% | 59%

Lake Oroville
30% | 48%

Folsom Lake
18% | 31%

New Melones
11% | 20%

Don Pedro Reservoir
32% | 47%

Exchequer Reservoir
9% | 19%

San Luis Reservoir
19% | 42%

Millerton Lake
37% | 92%

Perris Lake
36% | 47%

Castaic Lake
35% | 44%

Pine Flat Reservoir
12% | 35%





















7-B 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
OCTOBER 6, 2015 

 
 

RE: ALTERNATIVE CONSERVATION PLANS FOR  
 NON-RESIDENTIAL CUSTOMERS 
 

Desert Water Agency has approved and is currently reviewing a number of alternative 
conservation plans posed by customers who are ordinarily confined by Ordinance 
No. 63 restrictions.  
 
The plans allow for these customers to propose adjusted schedules for irrigation that  
still achieve 36% water reduction compared to 2013 use. Plans vary in approach and  
duration. All plans are reviewed by staff and approved by General Manager Dave Luker. 
 
Attached is the list of alternative conservation plans and several examples of plans 
themselves. 
 

 



Alternative Conservation Plans

Organization Status Date Submitted Plan Summary

O'Donnell Golf Club* Approved 4/17/2015 Reduced daily watering to achieve required percentage saved.

Las Fuentes Inn and Gardens Approved 4/24/2015
Shut off sprinklers to lawn, don't change linens and towels daily in 

order to run fountains. 

Canyon View Estates - Golf Course Approved 7/30/2015
Waters the golf course every other day, rather than residential 

Monday, Wednesday, Friday schedule.

San Jacinto Village Approved 9/16/2015
Shutting off water for most of October to scalp and turning it back on 

for daily water in late October (overseeding).

Firebird Estates* Approved 9/21/2015
Cutting off water to exterior to allow for daily water use in interior 

areas (overseeding).

Sunrise East Homeowners Association
Under 

review
10/1/2015

Water has been cut off to exterior areas adjacent to the street to allow 

for a two week period of every day watering within watering time 

restrictions (overseeding).

Mesquite Canyon Estates
Under 

review
10/1/2015

Water has been cut off to exterior areas adjacent to the street to allow 

for a two week period of every day watering within watering time 

restrictions (overseeding).

Canyon View Condos HOA
Under 

review
10/1/2015

Water has been cut off to exterior areas adjacent to the street to allow 

for a two week period of every day watering within watering time 

restrictions (overseeding).

Tierra Hermosa
Under 

review
10/1/2015

Water has been cut off to exterior areas adjacent to the street to allow 

for a two week period of every day watering within watering time 

restrictions (overseeding).

Andreas Hills Phase IV
Under 

review
10/1/2015

Water has been cut off to exterior areas adjacent to the street to allow 

for a two week period of every day watering within watering time 

restrictions (overseeding).

Andreas Hills Phase V
Under 

review
10/1/2015

Water has been cut off to exterior areas adjacent to the street to allow 

for a two week period of every day watering within watering time 

restrictions (overseeding).

* Plan examples attached









Water Reduction Plan 5/12/2015

Project: O'Donnell Country Club

The purpose of the water plan is to meet water usage reductions required by

state and local agencies mandated during drought conditions in California.

The methodology utilizes a water reduction estimation based on actual data

collected from the project site. The water usage data below is based on 

water bills for the identified year. On the following pages data that reflects

weather data collected at the site expressed in Evapotranspiration (ET.)

ET is expressed in inches of water required by the turf for a healthy plant. 

A monthly ET from the weather station is averaged into a daily ET for each month.

Each Management group (Greens, Tees, Roughs, etc.) is separated and a

daily projected flow run for the program is completed in the irrigation program which

operates the system & then total gallons used is recorded. A subsequent project 

flow run with a lower percentage adjustment is completed to evaluate water

savings at the reduced ET percentage. These savings are totaled and evaluated 

in relationship to the reduction goal. When the summary sheet is at zero the

reduction has been met, when it is a negative number the reduction has

been exceeded.

JAN 1,726 CCF JUL 11,150 CCF

FEB 3,177 CCF AUG 11,424 CCF

MAR 3,070 CCF SEP 8,396 CCF

APR 5,948 CCF OCT 3,987 CCF

MAY 8,295 CCF NOV 11,279 CCF

JUN 11,039 CCF DEC 4,854 CCF

33,255  CCF 51,090  CCF

2013 84,345 CCF 36% 30,364  CCF

TOTAL 63,090,060 Gal. Reduction 22,712,422 Gals.

Useage 193.59 AcFt

2013 2013



O'Donnell Country Club 5/12/2015

Water Usage Estimates by Irrigation Program

Utilizing the central irrigation computer, usage estimates were calculated at 100% of ET and 

then with a program adjustment to decrease water applied to below the daily ET.  The result in 

right column below is the estimated water savings by managing the irrigation program.

Monthly Daily Estimated Estimated PGM Adjusted Adjusted Monthly

ETo ETo Useage (day) Monthly ADJ Daily Monthly Reduction

January 31 2.67 0.09 36,529 1,132,399 100% 36,529 1,132,399 -                   

February 28 3.25 0.12 48,474 1,357,272 100% 48,474 1,357,272 -                   

March 31 5.85 0.19 78,688 2,439,328 70% 54,798 1,698,738 740,590          

April 30 6.85 0.23 96,954 2,908,620 70% 66,741 2,002,230 906,390          

May 31 8.19 0.26 108,893 3,375,683 65% 72,368 2,243,408 1,132,275       

June 30 8.62 0.29 120,837 3,625,110 60% 72,368 2,171,040 1,454,070       

July 31 8.02 0.26 108,893 3,375,683 65% 72,368 2,243,408 1,132,275       

August 31 7.93 0.26 108,893 3,375,683 65% 72,368 2,243,408 1,132,275       

September 30 6.69 0.22 96,260 2,887,800 65% 60,425 1,812,750 1,075,050       

October 31 5.26 0.17 72,368 2,243,408 100% 72,368 2,243,408 -                   

November 30 2.99 0.10 42,157 1,264,710 100% 42,157 1,264,710 -                   

December 31 3.56 0.11 48,474 1,502,694 100% 48,474 1,502,694 -                   

 29,488,390 0 21,915,465 7,572,925       

 

 

Monthly Daily Estimated Estimated PGM Adjusted Adjusted Monthly

ETo ETo Useage (day) Monthly ADJ Daily Monthly Reduction

January 31 2.67 0.09 29,553 916,143 40% 12,181 377,611 538,532          

February 28 3.25 0.12 37,801 1,058,428 40% 14,452 404,656 653,772          

March 31 5.85 0.19 61,137 1,895,247 40% 23,381 724,811 1,170,436       

April 30 6.85 0.23 75,582 2,267,460 40% 29,662 889,860 1,377,600       

May 31 8.19 0.26 84,467 2,618,477 35% 24,446 757,826 1,860,651       

June 30 8.62 0.29 93,106 2,793,180 35% 31,933 957,990 1,835,190       

July 31 8.02 0.26 84,467 2,618,477 35% 24,446 757,826 1,860,651       

August 31 7.93 0.26 84,467 2,618,477 35% 24,446 757,826 1,860,651       

September 30 6.69 0.22 71,654 2,149,620 40% 28,972 869,160 1,280,460       

October 31 5.26 0.17 54,860 1,700,660 40% 22,994 712,814 987,846          

November 30 2.99 0.10 31,567 947,010 40% 14,101 423,030 523,980          

December 31 3.56 0.11 37,736 1,169,816 40% 14,519 450,089 719,727          

Programs: 7 Roughs  & 10 Tamarisk 22,752,995 8,083,499 14,669,496    

 

 

2013

ROUGHS

2013

FAIRWAYS

Program: 6 Fairways



O'Donnell Country Club 5/12/2015

Water Usage Estimates by Irrigation Program

Utilizing the central irrigation computer, usage estimates were calculated at 100% of ET and 

then with a program adjustment to decrease water applied to below the daily ET.  The result in 

right column below is the estimated water savings by managing the irrigation program.

Monthly Daily Estimated Estimated PGM Daily Monthly Monthly

ETo ETo Useage (day) Monthly ADJ % Red % Red Reduction

January 31 2.67 0.09 5,371 166,501 100% 5,371 166,501 0

February 28 3.25 0.12 7,053 197,484 100% 7,053 197,484 0

March 31 5.85 0.19 11,184 346,704 100% 11,184 346,704 0

April 30 6.85 0.23 13,840 415,200 85% 11,574 347,220 67,980

May 31 8.19 0.26 15,420 478,020 80% 12,379 383,749 94,271

June 30 8.62 0.29 17,072 512,160 80% 13,880 416,400 95,760

July 31 8.02 0.26 15,420 478,020 80% 12,379 383,749 94,271

August 31 7.93 0.26 15,420 478,020 80% 12,379 383,749 94,271

September 30 6.69 0.22 13,380 401,400 80% 11,365 340,950 60,450

October 31 5.26 0.17 10,088 312,728 100% 10,088 312,728 0

November 30 2.99 0.10 5,883 176,490 100% 5,883 176,490 0

December 31 3.56 0.11 7,011 217,341 100% 7,011 217,341 0

Pregram: #4 Tees   4,180,068 3,673,065 507,003   

Monthly Daily Estimated Estimated PGM Daily Monthly Monthly

ETo ETo Useage (day) Monthly ADJ % Red % Red Reduction

January 31 2.67 0.09 4,402 136,462 100% 4,402 136,462 0

February 28 3.25 0.12 5,592 156,576 100% 5,592 156,576 0

March 31 5.85 0.19 9,159 283,929 100% 9,159 283,929 0

April 30 6.85 0.23 11,025 330,750 100% 11,025 330,750 0

May 31 8.19 0.26 12,536 388,616 100% 12,536 388,616 0

June 30 8.62 0.29 14,005 420,150 100% 14,005 420,150 0

July 31 8.02 0.26 12,536 388,616 100% 12,536 388,616 0

August 31 7.93 0.26 12,536 388,616 100% 12,536 388,616 0

September 30 6.69 0.22 10,507 315,210 100% 10,507 315,210 0

October 31 5.26 0.17 7,972 247,132 100% 7,972 247,132 0

November 30 2.99 0.10 4,600 138,000 100% 4,600 138,000 0

December 31 3.56 0.11 5,436 168,516 100% 5,436 168,516 0

3,362,573 3,362,573 -           

2013

Backups

2013

Tees

Programs: #5 Surrounds & 20 PG Surrounds



O'Donnell Country Club 5/12/2015

Water Usage Estimates by Irrigation Program

Utilizing the central irrigation computer, usage estimates were calculated at 100% of ET.

These areas are considered critical and have no proposed reductions.

 

 AVG Daily Monthly

Monthly Daily Useage Useage

Month Days ETo ETo 100% ETo 100% ETo

January 31 2.67 0.09 2,674 82,894

February 28 3.25 0.12 3,489 97,692

March 31 5.85 0.19 5,383 166,873

April 30 6.85 0.23 6,321 189,630

May 31 8.19 0.26 7,187 222,797

June 30 8.62 0.29 8,053 241,590

July 31 8.02 0.26 7,187 222,797

August 31 7.93 0.26 7,187 222,797

September 30 6.69 0.22 6,285 188,550

October 31 5.26 0.17 4,550 141,050

November 30 2.99 0.10 2,710 81,300

December 31 3.56 0.11 2,833 87,823

Programs: 1, 2, 3 Greens  1,945,793

 AVG Daily Monthly

Monthly Daily Useage Useage

Month Days ETo ETo 100% ETo 100% ETo

January 31 2.67 0.09 1,486 46,066

February 28 3.25 0.12 1,857 51,996

March 31 5.85 0.19 2,956 91,636

April 30 6.85 0.23 3,499 104,970

May 31 8.19 0.26 3,924 121,644

June 30 8.62 0.29 4,349 130,470

July 31 8.02 0.26 3,924 121,644

August 31 7.93 0.26 3,924 121,644

September 30 6.69 0.22 3,441 103,230

October 31 5.26 0.17 2,649 82,119

November 30 2.99 0.10 1,561 46,830

December 31 3.56 0.11 1,857 57,567

Programs #21-24, #34  1,079,816

2013

Greens

2013

Clubhouse



O'Donnell Country Club 5/12/2015

Water Plan Results

The results of the program percentage reductions are 

summarized below in relationship to the target reduction

number.

36% Gallons CCF

Targeted Reduction 22,712,422  30,364    

Estimated Savings

Fairways -7,572,925 -10124

Roughs -14,669,496 -19612

Backups 0 0

Greens 0 0

Club/CG 0 0

Tees -507,003 -678

Reduction: -37,002 -49

When the Reduction number is zero the reduction has been met. 

   If the Reduction number is negative the target has been exceeded.












































































	10 06 15 Board Agenda
	Item 2A 09 15 15 Board Minutes
	2A
	MINUTES
	OF THE REGULAR MEETING
	Attendance

	Item 2B 09 23 15 Board Minutes
	2B
	MINUTES
	OF THE SPECIAL MEETING
	Attendance

	Item 3 10 06 15 GM Report
	OCTOBER 6, 2015

	Item 4A 09 29 15 Exec Cmttee Minutes
	Item 7A SWC_ MEMO TO BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF SEPT 17 2015 BOARD MEETING (DESERT)-c2
	ADP8677.tmp
	UMEMORANDUM
	1. USWPCA Board Meeting.
	5. UGeneral Manager’s Report.


	Item 7B 10 06 15 Alternative Conservation Plans
	10 06 15 Alternative Conservation plans attach3 ODonnell Water Plan - FINAL.pdf
	ODonnell Water Plan - FINAL01
	ODonnell Water Plan - FINAL02
	ODonnell Water Plan - FINAL03
	ODonnell Water Plan - FINAL04
	ODonnell Water Plan - FINAL05


	Item 8A 10 06 15 PI Media
	Item 8B 10 06 15 PI Activities

